
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 REGULAR MEETING      July 6, 2023 
 

Government Office Building 
Route 50 & N. Division Street 

Council Chambers, Room 301, Third Floor 
 

6:00 P.M. -  Call to Order – Shawn Jester 
 
Board Members:  Shawn Jester, Sandeep Gopalan, William Hill, Maurice 

Ngwaba, and D’Shawn Doughty. 
 
 MINUTES – May 4, 2023. 
 
ADOPTION OF BOA RULES & PROCEDURES. 
 
ZONING PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Case #SA-23-618 Parker & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Salisbury 77 LLC – 

Special Exception to Increase Density to 23.19 units per 
acre – Mill Pond Village Phase III – General Commercial 
District. 

 
* * * * * 

 



 

 

 

 

 

MINUTES 
 

The Salisbury Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session on May 
4, 2023, in Room 301, Government Office Building at 6:00 p.m. with attendance as follows: 
 
BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Shawn Jester 
William Hill (Absent) 
Maurice Ngwaba 
Edward Torbert 
Miya Horsey (Absent) 
Sandeep Gopalan 
D’Shawn Doughty 
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Brian Soper, City Planner 
Henry Eure, Senior Planner 
Beverly Tull, Recording Secretary 
Laura Hay, City Solicitor 

 
* * * * *  
 

Mr. Soper, City Planner, called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 

* * * * *  
 

Mr. Soper announced that there were changes to the Agenda to 
include the election of a Chair and Vice Chair, the election of the Open Meetings Act 
Representative, and that the 600 E. Church Street case had been withdrawn. 

 
Mr. Soper explained the purpose of the newly formed Board of 

Appeals. 
 

* * * * *  
 

NOMINATION OF CHAIR: 
 

Mr. Soper explained the importance of having someone that has 
experince with the zoning cases be the Chair as mosst of the cases will involve zoning.   

 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Torbert, seconded by Mr. Ngwaba, and duly 

carried, the motion to  have Mr. Shawn Jester serve as the Chair.  Mr. Gopalan obstsained 
from the voite. 

 
Mr. Jester gve a brief introduction explaining that he had served on 

the Board of Zoning Appeals for five (5) years.  He epxlained that his full-time job is woking 
for Andy Harris. 

 
 

NOMINATION OF VICE CHAIR: 
 

Mr. Soper explained that it would be beneficial to have an attorney 
who can serve in the absence of he Chair hold the Vice Chair position.  Ms. Hay added 
that the Vice Chaiur tends to make the motions. 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Torbert, secoded by Mr. Ngwaba, and duly 

carried, Mr. Sandeep Gopalan was elected as Vice Chair.  The vote was unanimous by 
all memebers present at the meeting. 

 
Mr. Jester assumed the role of Chair and proceeded with the 

meeting. 
 
NOMINATION OF OPEN MEETINGS ACT REPRESENTATIVE: 
 

Mr. Jester explained the need for electing an Open Meetings Act 
Reprsesentative.  Ms. Hay discuseed the need for all members to take the Open Meetings 
Act training, which is required by the State.  One member must be responsible for 
monitoring the meetings to make sure they adhere to the Open Meetings Act. 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Torbert, seconded by Mr. Gopalan, and duly 

carried, Mr. Ngwaba was elected as the Open Meetings Act Representative.  The vote 
was unanimous by all memebers present at the meeting. 

 
* * * * *  
 

Ms. Hay introduced herself to the Board and explaiend that she 
served as the City Attoney for the Board.  Staff also introduced themselves as well as 
each Board member. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
* * * * *  
 
 

MINUTES: 
 

Upon a motion by Mr. Gopalan, seconded by Mr. Ngwaba, and duly 
carried, the Board APPROVED the February 2, 2023 minutes as submitted.   

 
* * * * *  
 

Mr. Eure administered the oath to anyone wishing to speak before 
the cases heard by the Salisbury Board of Appeals.   

 
* * * * *  

 
Case  #SA-23-334 Cristo Vive Church – Enlargement of a Legal Nonconforming 

Use and a 0.7 ft. Front Yard Setback Variance and a 27.7 ft. Side Yard Setback 
Variance – 1308 Westchester Street – R-10 Residential District. 

Mr. Frank Hawk came forward.  Mr. Eure presented the Staff Report 
and all accompanying documentation into the record.  Mr. Eure explained that the 
applicant requests permission to construct 5,241 sq. ft. of additions to the existing 
nonconforming building.  The building is nonconforming, as it does not meet the minimum 
required rear yard setback of 75 ft.  The front addition is proposed to have a front yard 
setback of 49 ft., 3 in. along Westchester Street.  The Zoning Code requires a minimum 
front yard setback of 50 ft.  Board approval to enlarge an existing nonconforming building 
and a 27.7 ft. side yard setback and a 0.7-inch front yard setback variance is requested. 

Mr. Hawk explained that the church was built in 1969 to the Code 
standards at that time.  The Church sanctuary only holds 120 people and it is full most of 
the time.  The request to expand the building will increase the seating to 250 people.  The 
restrooms must be brought up to Code for the increase capacity.  The nursery and child 
area must be secured.  The requested addition to the front of the building will handle the 
nursery and child area.  The original plans were much larger but have been scaled back 
due to the Code requirements.  The 0.7-inch setback is needed to build the nursery and 
toddler area.  The nursery must be on the same level as the sanctuary for safety purposes.  
The utilities are at the front of the building so the restrooms need to stay at the front of the 
building.  The parking area is currently gravel and grass without a buffer but the new site 
plan will buffer the church from the residential properties.  The variance will not be 
detrimental to the City or the surrounding neighborhood.   

Mr. Torbert questioned Mr. Hawk if there would be blacktop parking.  
Mr. Hawk responded in the affirmative.  Mr. Eure responded that paved parking is 
required.  Mr. Hawk added that they would connect the sidewalk to the school. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Gopalan questioned Mr. Hawk on the practical difficulty or 
hardship for the 0.7-inch variance request.  Mr. Hawk responded that the need for the 
restrooms to be near the nursery and child area, as well as making sure the room was at 
least 12 ft. wide and meeting ADA requirements were the hardships that made the 0.7-
inch variance a necessity. 

Mr. Ngwaba thanked Mr. Eure for his analysis.  He suggested that the 
addition of the 5,241 sq. ft. to the church might not have included exploration of all the 
options for design.  Mr. Hawk responded that the location has to be on the same level as 
the sanctuary and near the restrooms.   

Mr. Eure referenced Attachment #2 and discussed adjoining the 
nursery to the new sanctuary, making a corridor to the restroom.  Mr. Hawk responded 
that a 2 hr. firewall was required and the rear wall of the sanctuary must have a 2 hr. 
firewall.   

Mr. Ngwaba questioned Mr. Hawk about reviewing the plans and 
looking at ways to meet the setback requirements.  Mr. Hawk responded that the plans 
that were shown were the best layout, adding that the 0.7-inch setback request was not 
a big deal. 

Mr. Torbert questioned if the architects from Georgia specialized in 
church design.  Mr. Hawk responded that he specializes in church design, having 
designed over 50 churches.  Mr. Torbert questioned that if Mr. Hawk followed Mr. Eure’s 
suggestion to move the nursery, how much of a financial impact would it make.  Mr. 
Hawk responded that it would not be a big financial impact but that he could not 
relocate it because of the distraction to the sanctuary.  There must be a line of sight to 
each room per the safety protocol.  The control desk must be manned. 

Mr. Gopalan questioned if the placement of the utilities was also a 
requirement.  Mr. Hawk responded that he could not render the utilities to the other side 
or the building.  

Mr. Doughty suggested that the nursery and toddler room at the rear 
of the building would be safer.  Mr. Hawk stated that he could not run the utility lines to 
the rear of the building.   

Mr. Ngwaba questioned the stair width because if they were to 
move one (1) foot it would not lose anything. 

Mr. Gopalan questioned Ms. Hay if the Code required the Board to 
redesign the project.  Ms. Hay responded that the Board does not redesign the project 
but can offer suggestions.  She added that the Board discusses the factors of the variance 
and must do Findings of Fact of the decision.  The other issue is the enlargement of the  

 



 

 

 

 

 

nonconforming use. 

Mr. Jester stated that he appreciated the Staff providing a 
recommendation and the Board can make a decision if they feel differently.   

Mr. Torbert questioned the basis for the Staff’s recommendation of 
denial.  Mr. Eure responded that there are no hardships and the building would be 
noncompliant ton three (3) sides.  There are alternatives for the design. 

Ms. Hay requested that the Staff Report be moved into the record.  
Mr. Jester stated that the Staff Report was part of the record. 

Mr. Hawk questioned where it was codified that the 50 ft. setback is 
from the curb.  Mr. Eure responded that the requirement is in the Code.  Mr. Hawk stated 
that if it was from the lot line that it would be 8 ft. 

Upon a motion by Mr. Ngwaba, seconded by Mr. Torbert, and duly 
carried, the Board APPROVED the 27.7 ft. Side Yard Setback Variance, DENIED the 0.7 ft. 
Front Yard Setback Variance, and APPROVED the Enlargement of a Legal 
Nonconforming Structure based on Section V (c) of the Staff Report and subject to the 
following Conditions of Approval: 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
1. The front addition may meet but not encroach any closer to Westchester Street 

than the allowable 50 ft. front yard setback. 
2. Landscaped islands shall have a minimum 8 ft. width. 
3. Provide at least two (2) van accessible parking spaces. 

 

The Board vote was as follows: 

D’Shawn Doughty  Aye 
Maurice Ngwaba  Aye 
Sandeep Gopalan  Nay 
Ed Torbert   Aye 
Shawn Jester   Aye 
 

* * * * *  
 

Mr. Soper explained that there are currently no zoning cases for June 
but haven’t received any information from HCDD if they have any cases for June. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
Mr. Doughty quesitoned if the alternates were required to attend 

each meeting.  Mr. Soper responded that it is preferred if all members attend each 
meeting.  Staff has the ability  to pick from the members who should sit based on the 
case. 

 
There was discussion about the meeting date and time.  Mr. Torbert 

noted that he has a conflict with the first Thursday of the month. 
 
Mr. Soper questoned Ms. Hay if the handbook needed to be voted 

on.  Ms. Hay ressponded that it did not need to be voted on but should go on a future 
agenda for a briefing.   

 

* * * * * 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 
 
* * * * *  

 
This is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  Detailed 

information is in the permanent files of each case as presented and filed in the City of 
Salisbury Department of Infrastructure and Development Department. 
 
 

_______________________________  
Shawn Jester, Chairman 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Richard Baldwin, Secretary to the Board 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Beverly R. Tull, Recording Secretary 

 

 



 

SALISBURY BOARD OF 
APPEALS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
 

Adopted: April 10, 2023 
Resolution No. 3249 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section I: Authority .................................................................... 1 
Section II: Organization .............................................................. 1 

Name ........................................................................................ 1 
Membership   ............................................................................ 1 
Standards of Conduct  ........................................................... 1 
Removal of Members  ........................................................... 1 
Officers ..................................................................................... 2 

Section III: Meetings ..................................................................... 3 
Open Meetings Act .................................................................. 3 
Meetings .................................................................................. 4 
Order of Business .................................................................. 4 
Quorum and Voting ............................................................... 5 
Appeals  .................................................................................... 5 

Section IV: Amendments ........................................................... 5 
 



1  

Section I: Authority. 
 

These Rules of Procedure are promulgated under the authority vested in the 
Board of Appeals by Md. Code Ann., Land Use § 4-301 et. seq. and by Article VI, Chapter 
17.12, Title 17, of the Salisbury City Code (hereinafter referred to as the "Code"). It is 
the intent of these Rules of Procedure to prescribe the means for the implementation 
of the Code. 
 
Section II. Organization. 
 

A. Name. The name of this body is the "Salisbury Board of Appeals," 
referred to herein as “the Board.”  
 

B. Membership.  The Board shall consist of five members and two alternates 
appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the City Council. When possible, preference shall 
be given in order to ensure that the Board includes at least one building 
professional/architect/engineer, tenant, property owner and/or attorney, as well as potential 
members who have a demonstrated special interest, specific knowledge, or professional or 
academic training in public health.  Members shall be appointed for terms of three years. A 
member whose term has expired may continue to serve until reappointed or replaced.  A 
Board member may be re-appointed for additional and consecutive terms.  

 
C. Standards of Conduct: 

 
1. No Board member shall allow bias or prejudice to affect the ability to 

exercise fairness and reason in any proceeding before the Board.  
 

2. No Board member shall represent an applicant, appellant or member of the 
general public before the Board.  

 
3. A Board member may appear before the Board on any application or appeal, 

but may not participate as a Board member.  
 

4. A Board member shall note on the record, before any proceeding before the 
Board commences, or as soon as realized after a proceeding has commenced, 
that there is a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest.  
If the Board member believes, as a result, that they cannot make any decision 
related to the proceeding in a fair and impartial manner, they shall recuse 
themself from participating in the proceeding.  

 
D. Removal of Members. A member of the Board may be removed by the Mayor 

for: 
 

1. Incompetence; 
 

2. Misconduct; or 



2  

 
3. In the same manner as for a member of a State board or commission: 

 
a. Failure to attend meetings under § 8-501 of the State Government Article; or 

 
b.  Conviction of a crime in accordance with § 8-502 of the State Government 

Article. 
 

Prior to Removal, the Mayor shall provide to the member: 
 

1. A written statement of charges stating the grounds for removal; and 
 

2. An opportunity for a public hearing to contest the charges. 
 

E. Officers. 
 

1. The Board shall have as officers a Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary. The 
Board shall also appoint at least one Open Meetings Act representative who 
shall receive all required training on the Maryland Open Meetings Act.  
 

2. The Director of the Department of Infrastructure and Development or their 
designated representative shall serve as Secretary to the Board. 

 
3. The Chair shall sit as the presiding officer of the Board. The Chair 

shall direct the Secretary in the preparation of the agenda and rule on 
any requests for postponement submitted prior to the hearing date. The 
Chair shall call meetings to order, rule on all points of order, administer 
oaths, bring to vote all matters required of Board action, and together with 
the Secretary, authenticate the record of meetings, actions, orders, 
certificates and other proceedings of the Board.  

 
4. The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the Chair's 

absence. 
 

5. The Secretary shall issue all required notices of meetings, including 
notices to members. At the direction of the Chair, the Secretary shall 
prepare the agenda, distribute required documentation to Board members, 
record the proceedings and prepare minutes of the meetings, maintain 
official records and files of the Board and conduct the general 
correspondence of the Board. The Secretary will receive and process all 
applications for appeal filed with the Board. 

 
6. Election of Officers. 

 
a. The Board shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chai, as well as an Open 

Meetings Act representative, whose terms shall be for two years or until 
their successors have been elected. 
 



3  

b. The Secretary of the Board shall preside over the nomination and 
election of the Chair. Thereafter, the Chair shall preside over the 
meeting and conduct and supervise the nomination and election of a 
Vice-Chair. 

 
c. Should the office of Chair become vacant for any reason, the Vice-

Chair shall become the Chair for the duration of the unexpired term 
and the Board shall elect a new Vice-Chair to fill the unexpired term. 
 

Section III. Meetings. 
 

A.  Open Meetings Act.  
 

1. All meetings of the board shall be open to the public, except that the Board 
may hold closed sessions in accordance with the Maryland Open 
Meetings Act. 

2. Public Attendance.  
a. At any open session of the Board, the general public is invited to attend 

and observe.  
b. Except in instances when the Board expressly invites public testimony, 

questions, comments, or other forms of public participation, or when 
public participation is otherwise authorized by law, no member of the 
public attending an open session may participate in the session. 

3.  Disruptive Conduct. 
a. A person attending an open session of the Board may not engage in any 

conduct, including visual demonstrations such as the waving of 
placards, signs, or banners, that disrupts the session or that interferes 
with the right of members of the public to attend and observe the 
session.  

b. The Chair may order any person who persists in conduct prohibited by 
subsection (a) of this section or who violates any other regulation 
concerning the conduct of the open session to be removed from the 
session and may request police assistance to restore order.  

c. The Chair may recess the session while order is restored.  
4. Recording, Photographing, and Broadcasting of Open Session.  

a. A member of the public, including any representative of the news 
media, may record discussions of the Board at an open session by 
means of a tape recorder or any other recording device if the device 
does not create an excessive noise that disturbs members of the Board 
or other persons attending the session.  

b. A member of the public, including any representative of the news 
media, may photograph or videotape the proceedings of the Board at an 
open session by means of any type of camera if the camera: (1) Is 
operated without excessively bright artificial light that disturbs 



4  

members of the Board or other persons attending the session; and (2) 
Does not create an excessive noise that disturbs members of the Board 
or other persons attending the session.  

c. A representative of the news media may broadcast or televise the 
proceedings of the Board at an open session if the equipment used: (1) 
Is operated without excessively bright artificial light that disturbs 
members of the Board or other persons attending the session; and (2) 
Does not create an excessive noise that disturbs members of the Board 
or other persons attending the session.  

d. The presiding officer may restrict the movement of a person who is 
using a recording device, camera, or broadcasting or television 
equipment if such restriction is necessary to maintain the orderly 
conduct of the session.  

5. Recording Not Part of Record. A recording of an open session made by a 
member of the public, or any transcript derived from such a recording, may 
not be deemed a part of the record of any proceeding of the Board. 

B. Meetings. 
 

1. Meetings shall be held on an as-needed basis. 
 

2. Meetings of the Board shall be convened by the Chair, or in the Chair’s 
absence, the Vice-Chair. In the event both are absent, the regular member in 
attendance with the greatest seniority of service shall act as Chair. 
 

3. The Chair or, in the Chair’s absence, the acting Chair may administer oaths.  
 

4. The Board shall record and keep minutes of its proceedings, which show the 
vote of each member upon each question, or, if a member is absent or fails to 
vote, the minutes shall indicate such fact. The Board shall keep recordings of 
all proceedings, records of its examinations and other official actions, all of 
which shall be filed immediately in the office of the Board and shall be a public 
record open to inspection during the hours of normal operation of the office. 
Copies of the minutes shall be made available to interested parties. A party who 
requests a copy of the recording or its transcript shall pay the cost of the 
recording or transcript.  

 
5. The Board, in its discretion, for any reasonable purpose stated, may decide 

to continue a public hearing to any other reasonable time, place or location 
it deems advisable. The appellant/applicant, as well as all other interested 
parties who registered at the initial hearing, shall be notified in person or 
in writing of the date, time and place of the continuance meeting. 

 
 C.  Order of Business. 

 
1. The Chair, or the Chair’s assigns, may call each case to be heard by the 

Board. 



5  

 
2. The Chair shall administer oaths. 

 
3. The Chair shall, at the Chair’s discretion, take such steps as necessary to 

ensure the proper and orderly conduct of meetings. In order to afford all 
persons an opportunity to be heard on an appeal or other agenda item, 
the Chair may impose reasonable time limits upon comments. 

 
4. Each party has the following rights at a hearing: 

 
a. To call and examine witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues 

of the hearing; 
 

b. To introduce documentary and physical evidence; 
 

c. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the 
issues of the hearing; and 

 
d. To represent themself or to be represented by anyone of their choice 

who is lawfully permitted to so do. 
 

D. Quorum and Voting. 
 

1. Three members shall constitute a quorum. The Chair shall be counted in 
reaching a quorum. A member of the Board shall recuse themself from 
participating in a matter in which the member may have a conflict of interest 
or an appearance of a conflict of interest. If a majority of the Board does not 
approve the application or find in the favor of the appellant, the Board's 
inability to reach a decision by majority vote shall result in denial of the 
application or appeal.  
 

2. Questions put to a vote are decided by a majority of the members present 
and voting; however, no decision shall be made in the absence of a 
quorum. 

 
3. A tie vote by the Board shall be interpreted as a defeat of the motion 

upon which the vote was taken. 
 

4. The Secretary shall record the name of the Board member making each 
motion and the name of the member who seconds the motion. 

 
5. Each motion shall contain a statement of the findings of fact and grounds 

forming the basis of the Board's action or decision, and the full text of said 
motion and record of members' votes shall be incorporated in the minutes 
of the Board. 



6  

 
6. The official date of the Board's decision shall be that date shown on the 

Notice of Decision sent to the applicant and/or their representative. 
 

7. No application requesting the same relief previously ruled upon by 
the Board shall be heard by the Board for a period of one (1) year 
following the date of the decision. 

 
E. Appeals.  Any applicant, appellant or interested person aggrieved by a decision 

of the Board shall have the right to appeal that decision to the Circuit Court for 
Wicomico County. Any appeal shall be noted in the Circuit Court within 30 days 
of the Board's decision  

 

Section IV. Amendments. 
 

These Rules of Procedure, and any part thereof, may be amended by the Board, 
subject to approval by the City Council.   


































	Agenda
	AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING      July 6, 2023


	May 4, 2023 NOT APPROVED SBOA minutes
	MINUTES
	BOARD MEMBERS:
	CITY STAFF:

	ADJOURNMENT

	BOAHandbook.Final
	TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Mill Pond Village Phase III Staff Report

